
Date Published:24 November 2017     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 29 November 2017 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2017.

Laura Powick

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Laura Powick

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(Pages 9 - 16)

To consider a verbal update on the activities of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC). 

The minutes from the GEGSC meeting held on 19 October 2017 are 
attached for information. 

Cllr David 
Norman MBE

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE CONNECTIONS STUDY 

To receive a presentation on the GCC commissioned study looking 
at the future role for road and rail in support of improved strategic 
connectivity in Gloucestershire by 2050, and to provide members 
with the opportunity to discuss the initial themes and challenges 
emerging from the first phase of this work.

Martin Revill



    

6  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 17 - 28)

To receive a report on the delivery of the Growth Programme in the 
County, including an update on ESIF and the Growth Deal Fund 
reallocation process. 

Dev 
Chakraborty

7  EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS (Pages 29 - 40)

To receive a brief update on progress with the employment and 
skills agenda.

Pete Carr

8  ECONOMIC INTELLIGENCE - INFORM GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

To receive a presentation on the range and value of economic 
intelligence and data available on INFORM, as a precursor to the 
proposed improvement project.

Katherine Martin

9  BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 41 - 46)

To receive an update report on the Business Rate Pool and 
expenditure proposals for the Strategic Economic Development 
Fund. 

David Stanley, 
Nigel Riglar

10  STRATEGIC PLANNING COLLABORATION IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 
(Pages 47 - 56)

To receive an update on proposals including governance and the 
Strategic Planning Commissioner role.

Mike Dawson

11  GOVERNMENT/ HCA HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 

District and County Councils to provide a verbal update on their 
bids. 

District and 
County Councils

12  FASTERSHIRE BROADBAND PROJECT 

To receive a verbal update on progress with the project.

Claire Edwards

13  FORWARD PLAN - FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 57 - 60)

To consider proposed areas of focus and discussion topics for 
future meetings of the Committee.

Mike Dawson

14  FUTURE MEETING DATES 

To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates in 
2018:

Wednesday 14 March 2018

Laura Powick



    

Wednesday 20 June 2018
Wednesday 5 September 2018
Wednesday 21 November 2018

All meetings to start at 10am (this allows meetings of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee to take place 
on the same day).

Membership –  Cllr Lynden Stowe (Chairman) Cllr Dave Waters, Cllr Tim Gwilliam, Cllr Paul 
James, Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Christopher Hancock and Cllr Steve Lydon
Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 6 September 2017 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite 
- Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Lynden Stowe 
(Chairman)
Cllr Dave Waters
Cllr Paul James
Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Christopher Hancock

Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Steve Lydon
Mally Findlater
Dev Chakraborty

Substitutes: Cllr Roger James

Apologies: Cllr Tim Gwilliam

89. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Tim Gwilliam. 

Cllr Roger James substituted at the meeting for Cllr Gwilliam. 

90. MINUTES 

One member queried, in reference the minutes of the last meeting on the Business 
Rate Pool item, when the LEP Core Funding proposals would be presented to the 
Committee. Members were informed that a briefing note would be issued to the 
Committee following a meeting of the Chief Financial Officers, and that an update 
on the LEP Core Funding Position and prospectus for the business rates pool pilot 
would be presented at the next Committee meeting. 

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2017 were approved by the Committee 
and signed by the Chairman. 

91. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

92. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Cllr David Norman MBE, Chairman of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC), presented a request that the Chairman of GEGSC 
be invited to present, as a standing item on the agenda, the views and work of the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Scrutiny Committee at Joint Committee meetings. It was also requested that the 
minutes of the GEGSC meetings be circulated with the agendas for GEGJC. Cllr 
Norman expressed his belief that this would assist in adding value to the Scrutiny 
Committee’s role in scrutinising the work of the Joint Committee.

Members noted that GEGSC members would be reviewing the Scrutiny 
Committee’s terms of reference and submitting a report to the Constitution 
Committee at its meeting on 9 October 2017, based on the following proposals:

a) The Scrutiny Committee to consider amending statement a) of the terms of 
reference, and the requirement ‘to review the decisions of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee’; and 

b) The statement to be amended to give the Scrutiny Committee a wider scope 
by ‘reviewing the economic plans and policies of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee’.

Members were also informed that, following a recommendation from the previous 
Scrutiny Committee and with the support of the current Committee, it had been 
proposed that the two stand alone GEGSC meetings held each year be held at one 
of the 6 district council offices, on a rotational basis, with an invitation to councillors 
from that authority to attend the meeting and present questions on localised issues. 
Joint Committee members and lead officers from host districts would also be invited 
to attend the meeting. This proposal would be considered at the Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on the afternoon of 6 September 2017. 

It was clarified that the Chairman of GEGSC would attend Joint Committee 
meetings to present the standing scrutiny item only and would not contribute to 
other items on the agenda.

In response to a query, Cllr Norman explained that at its meeting in June, GEGSC 
debated the arrangement of holding the Scrutiny Committee meetings on the same 
day as Joint Committee meetings. It was decided that the meetings would remain 
as scheduled at least until half-way through 2018. 

The Committee supported the proposals of GEGSC, and it was therefore 

Resolved

a) That the Chairman of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee be invited to present, as a standing item on the agenda, the 
views and work of the scrutiny committee at Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee meetings; and

b) That the minutes of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny 
Committee meetings be circulated with the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee agendas.

93. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst LEP, provided the Committee with an 
update on the delivery of the Growth Programme in the County, including the 
Growth Deal Fund reallocation process.

Members noted the status of projects that were progressing through the approval 
and funding process, and that the documents detailing this information were 
updated on the website quarterly. 

The Committee was informed about the process for the reallocation of Growth Deal 
Funds, and it was explained that the timetable for this process had been revised. 
Projects considered ‘exceptional’ needed to be submitted either through the LEP 
Board or through the Joint Committee by the deadline of 10 October 2017. 
Members of the Committee wishing to sponsor a project needed to inform the LEP 
Board or Gloucestershire County Council. Members noted that the LEP Board 
meeting scheduled for 8 August 2017 had been cancelled and therefore the Growth 
Deal Programme reallocation of funds had been reviewed and processed by written 
procedure. 

In response to a query, the criteria for the consideration of projects for the 
reallocation of Growth Deal funds was clarified.

Clarification was also sought on the number of homes forecast to be built under the 
Cheltenham Cyber Park Project. It was understood that the figure needed to be 
amended on the Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary to 1100 homes.

Members were updated on the European Funding Programme.

The Committee noted the report. 

94. ECONOMIC INTELLIGENCE 

Claire Edwards, Outcome Manager, Gloucestershire County Council, presented to 
the Committee a summary of the recent Oxford Economics report on county 
economies and its relevance to Gloucestershire, and a proposal to improve co-
ordination of the collation and utilisation of economic intelligence across the County.

Following a discussion by members at the Committee meeting in June 2017 on 
economic data and consistency of approach, the GEGJC Senior Officer Group had 
been considering options to enhance its strategic needs analysis work and 
collective economic data management practices. 

Members noted that the report, commissioned by the County Council Network, 
highlighted the challenges facing counties such as Gloucestershire, and determined 
that there was a need for the emerging national Industrial Strategy to focus on 
county areas, complemented by a radical programme of devolution.

Members discussed the report and recommendations from the Senior Officer 
Group. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Resolved

1. To note the report summarising the Oxford Economics report on 
county economies; and

2. To approve the recommended actions to improve the collation and 
utilisation of data/intelligence across the County.

95. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, 
Gloucestershire County Council, provided the Committee with a verbal update on 
the Business Rate Pool. Members noted that an update on the Business Rate Pool, 
including a detailed update on the LEP Core Funding Position and the prospectus 
for the business rates pool would be presented at the next GEGJC meeting. 

96. STRATEGIC PLANNING COLLABORATION IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough Council, informed the 
Committee of a proposal from Leadership Gloucestershire for strategic planning 
collaboration in Gloucestershire. It was proposed that a Strategic Planning 
Coordinator role be developed to support strategic planning collaboration within the 
County. 

It was explained that the terms of reference for GEGJC included sufficient powers 
to appoint a Strategic Planning Coordinator. 

It was noted that a further report detailing the recruitment arrangements, the terms 
of employment of the post, and any changes to GEGJC’s governance 
arrangements would be provided at the next Committee meeting on 29 November 
2017.

Resolved

1. To approve the proposal of Leadership Gloucestershire to create a 
Strategic Planning Coordinator post on the basis of the funding
arrangements set out in paragraph 2 of the report; and 

2. That a further report detailing the recruitment arrangements, the
terms of employment of the post and any changes to the Committee’s 
governance arrangements be provided to the Committee at its meeting 
on 29 November 2017 for consideration.

97. GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT PLAN 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Jonathan Medlin, S106 Officer: Economic Development and Strategic Planning, 
Gloucestershire County Council, provided the Committee with a demonstration of 
the Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Plan (GIIP) mapping project. 

Members noted that the GIIP, which was currently in list form, was reviewed 
regularly, and that the mapping of projects allowed for the connections and 
interactions between projects to be visualised. 

It was recommended that further testing and refinement of the mapping project be 
carried out by GEGJC members between October 2017 and March 2018. This 
would allow for any necessary changes and for Committee members to ascertain 
whether the mapping data was useful for the wider public and whether it should be 
made widely available. Jonathan Medlin advised that he would be in contact with 
Committee members to arrange training on the mapping tool. 

The Committee recognised the benefits of the mapping tool in helping members to 
understand the strategic picture for Gloucestershire, and as a useful lobbying tool 
for Government. 

In response to a query, it was explained that additional data could be overlaid on 
the mapping tool, although the relevance of a mapping tool focused only on 
infrastructure was also highlighted to the Committee.

The Committee noted the report and welcomed the opportunity to partake in further 
testing of the mapping tool over the next six months.

Resolved

To note the information provided in this paper as an update to mapping the 
GIIP to assist in decisions about Gloucestershire’s growth related strategic 
infrastructure priorities.

98. FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES - DCLG/ HCA HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 
AND HE GROWTH AND HOUSING FUND 

Nigel Riglar updated the Committee on Gloucestershire’s submissions for the 
Housing Infrastructure Fund, sponsored by the Homes and Communities Agency, 
and the Growth and Housing Fund, sponsored by Highways England.

Members noted that the Government was offering forward funding of up to 
£250million for county councils from the Housing Infrastructure Fund; the aim was 
to forward fund infrastructure, including transport, to unlock housing. 
Gloucestershire County Council would be submitting two expressions of interest 
which included M5 Junction 10 and M5 Junction 9. Even if unsuccessful, it was 
noted that the EoIs would further build the case for J10 and J9, and that both would 
require Highways England support. It was also noted that the West of England 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Combined Authority would not be progressing the M5 Junction 14 scheme. 
Members agreed that J10 should be the top priority at this time.

Committee members from the district councils provided an update on the 
opportunities being considered by district councils for the Marginal Viability pathway 
of the Housing Infrastructure Fund. 

In an update on the Growth and Housing Fund, it was understood that discussions 
were held with GFirst LEP on a submission from Gloucestershire, and that the 
Gloucester Cross Keys Junction Improvement Scheme had been identified as 
currently meeting the Government’s criteria. 

The Committee considered the merits of an officer from Highways England 
attending a Committee meeting to discuss future development of the M5. It was 
agreed that the regional director of Highways England would be invited to attend a 
future meeting.  

It was also noted that a briefing for Gloucestershire MPs on these funding 
opportunities would be coordinated to help promote Gloucestershire’s schemes.

Resolved

To note the report and endorse the schemes that are proposed for 
submission, and confirm J10 as the top priority for the County in terms of the 
Housing Investment Fund.

99. FORWARD PLAN - FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME 

The Committee considered the proposed areas of focus and discussion topics for 
future meetings of the Committee. It was explained that members could inform 
officers if they had an item they wished to be added to the work programme.

It was agreed that an ‘Unscheduled Items’ section would be included in the 
Committee Forward Plan, and, following a discussion on the refresh of the Strategic 
Economic Plan, it was agreed that a strategic update would be included in future 
GFirst LEP updates to the Committee. 

The Committee noted the Forward Plan.

100. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2017 and for 2018.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.20 am

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 
held at the Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices on Thursday 19 October 2017. 

 
 

PRESENT:   

 Cllr Dave Norman MBE (Chairman)  
Cllr Kevin Cromwell  
Cllr Paul McCloskey 
Cllr Matt Babbage 
Cllr Stephen Davies 
Cllr Bruce Hogan 
Cllr Colin Hay 
Cllr Dawn Melvin 
Cllr Phil Awford 
Cllr Jim Dewey  
 

 

1. WELCOME  
 
At the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee meeting on 21 June 
2017, the committee endorsed a proposal by the former committee to hold two of 
the six scheduled scrutiny committee meetings held at Shire Hall each year as 
‘stand alone meetings’ at one of the district/borough council offices in 
Gloucestershire, (arranged on a rotational basis).  
 
Seeking nominations on where the October committee meeting should be held, it 
was agreed the first meeting would be held at the Tewkesbury Borough Council 
Offices on 19 October 2017. Cllr Dave Norman, as Chairman of the Committee, to 
invite local members and lead officers from the respective authority to present 
information on current issues and priorities relevant to the economic growth agenda 
for that authority, and for scrutiny committee members to ask questions on the 
measures in place to grow and sustain the local economy.  
 
At the meeting there would also be an opportunity for members to consider how to 
improve communications between the GFirst LEP, (Local Enterprise Partnership), 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee and the District Authorities.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mike Dawson, Chief Executive of Tewkesbury Borough 
Council, and Deputy Leader, Cllr Rob Bird, for hosting the meeting, and the 
members and officers in attendance for their participation at this the first of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee ‘Roadshow’ events.  
 
The Chairman also welcomed Pete Carr, Lead Commissioner: Skills and 
Employment to the meeting and explained that Pete would be representing both the 
County Council and GFirst, in response to questions.   

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

 
Following the discussion, an outcome report would be produced, outlining the key 
outcomes from the meeting, plus the responses to any questions where it had been 
not been possible to provide an answer at the meeting.  
 

2. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Kate Haigh, (Gloucestershire County Council), 
Cllr Martin Whiteside, (represented by Cllr Jim Dewey from Stroud District Council), 
and Cllr Stephen Hirst, (Cotswold District Council).  
 
Cllr Jack Williams, (Gloucestershire County Council), was unable to attend the 
meeting.  
 
Apologies were also noted from the Leader of Tewkesbury Borough Council, Cllr 
Dave Waters, and from Borough Councillors, Elaine MacTiernan, Mel Gore, Janet 
Day and Kay Berry.   
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest at the meeting.   
 

4. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2017 were confirmed as an 
accurate record of that meeting.  
 
The Chairman suggested that the actions from the meeting be revisited at the 
meeting on 29 November 2017, and this was agreed.  
 

5. TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
Mike Dawson, Chief Executive of Tewkesbury Borough Council, opened the 
discussion by introducing Lead Member for Economic Development and Promotion, 
Cllr Rob Bird, and lead officers, Katie Power, Economic Development Officer, and 
Annette Roberts, Head of Development Services.  
 
Overview 
 
Focussing on ‘what is happening’, ‘why’ and ‘what might be done better’ in terms of 
promoting economic growth, Mike announced that the key focus of the economic 
agenda for Tewkesbury was to work with the other districts in prioritising and 
promoting the economic development of Gloucestershire.  
 
The Chief Executive stated that, as part of a new economic development and 
tourism strategy, the Borough Council’s ambition was to become the growth engine 
of Gloucestershire. Key aspirations included within the council’s plan for economic 
development comprised; identifying and delivering employment land; maximising 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

the growth potential of the M5 motorway junctions; working towards the 
regeneration of the town centre, and delivering more housing.  
 
With a clear focus on developing business growth for the area, the Economic 
Development Strategy 2017-2021 for Tewkesbury identified several priority areas. 
These included; employment land planning; transport infrastructure improvements; 
providing business growth support; improvements to employability, education and 
training.  
 
Presenting a snapshot of the economic framework of Tewkesbury, the Chief 
Executive summarised some of the opportunities specific to the Borough on which 
the council could draw on when promoting the business growth of the area. These 
included; the unique and centralised geographical location of Tewkesbury; access 
to major transport links, (road, rail and air); the amount of available employment 
land; the diverse and varied economy; Tewkesbury’s identity as an established 
base for high quality manufacturing, (including high tech aero engineering); tourism 
opportunities; major housing development opportunities and the emphasis within 
the Joint Core Strategy on employment growth.  
 
Expanding on the incentives intended to promote and encourage business 
expansion within the Tewkesbury area, the Chief Executive provided details of 
some of the schemes designed to encourage businesses locate/re-locate to the 
area; the support provided to develop and grow urban localities; several funding 
opportunities; and measures introduced to support the ongoing regeneration of the 
town centre. The Chief Executive stated that, despite being a small team with 
limited resources, the council was committed to facilitating an environment aimed at 
promoting entrepreneurship and inward investment.  
 
Referencing some of the grants available to develop economic (business) growth, 
the Chief Executive advised of potential benefits to be sourced from the ‘Working 
from Home’, ‘Business Start Up’ and ‘Growing Business’ Grants. He also advised of 
the support being provided to Tewkesbury, (and the Forest of Dean District), from 
the Rural Development Programme for England.  
Other funding opportunities included capital fund grants of between £5,000 and 
£100,000 to support new and innovative schemes, and funds managed by the 
Local Action Group (LAG) derived from partnership working under the Tewkesbury 
Borough and Forest of Dean Leader Programme.  
 
Inspired by the presentation, the Scrutiny Committee was particularly interested in 
the innovative work between the Borough Council and the People’s Republic of 
China. Specific examples included, the Borough Council hosting events to link 
Gloucestershire businesses with counterparts in China, and the council acting as a 
conduit to enable local businesses reach new markets.   
 
In terms of tourism, the Chief Executive elaborated on some of the initiatives that 
had been introduced to build on existing tourism attractions within the Tewkesbury 
and wider Cotswold areas.  
 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

Referring to the work of the GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership, the Chief 
Executive made reference to activities and proposals funded by LEP capital 
funding. These included; the creation of a Growth Hub in Tewkesbury in 2018; 
enrolment in a scheme aimed at increasing high street retailer digital activity, plus a 
variety of other schemes aimed at providing business support and inward 
investment.  
 
Responding to questions about the relationship that existed between the Borough 
Council and the LEP, the Chief Executive advised of the commitment between the 
two organisations to develop more formal links of engagement at both member and 
strategic level. The Chief Executive confirmed that the relationship had recently 
benefitted from a number of improvements and had gained in strength. Seeking to 
build on this strength, (from a strategic rather than an operational perspective), 
members were advised of ongoing discussions held between the Borough Council 
and the Chief Executive of the LEP, David Owen.  
 
Highlighting the importance of the Joint Core Strategy, Mike Dawson emphasised 
the need for members to become more aware of the work of the LEP and the 
projects intended for the Tewkesbury area, and for the Borough Council to be 
involved in strategic planning discussions. He also emphasised the need for the 
LEP and the district councils to support one another, hopefully aided by the recent 
appointment of a Strategic Planning Coordinator.   
 
It was suggested that the success of the relationship between the LEP and the 
seven Gloucestershire Councils was dependent on the individual council’s 
commitment to supporting the delivery of the programmes set out in the Strategic 
Economic Plan, and where appropriate, to the individual councils contributions to 
delivering these programmes and the wider growth ambitions for Gloucestershire.  
 
The role of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee is to provide the 
mechanism for co-ordinating to this contribution. In turn, the role of the Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee is to review the performance of the Joint Committee in 
fulfilling its responsibilities.  
 
Outcomes 
 
The outcomes from the discussion provided a positive and encouraging outlook, 
with several suggestions noted by the Chief Executive and lead officers to consider 
and pursue as part of the economic agenda for Tewkesbury.  
 
Key points/proposals considered during the discussion, included: -  
 

a) The role of the Borough Council, (in terms of promoting economic growth), is 
to facilitate and influence;   
 

b) Investment in Junctions 9 and 10 of the M5 Motorway are key to improving 
accessibility to Tewkesbury Borough/Gloucestershire.  
 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 5 - 
 

c) The location of Gloucestershire Airport, (with close proximity to the M5 
Motorway), could offer an additional transport link for the county;  
 

d) Use of the River Severn for commercial/commuting purposes could provide 
opportunities for creating an additional mode of sustainable transport for 
Gloucestershire;  
 

e) Avoiding duplication, the Scrutiny Committee to consider the performance of 
the Joint Committee in delivering the growth programmes set out in the 
Strategic Economic Plan and in delivering the wider economic ambitions of 
Gloucestershire;  
 

f) Tourism and other factors affecting the economic growth of the County to be 
considered as part of an update/presentation on Vision 2050 at the scrutiny 
committee meeting in March 2018.  
 

g) Investment in major housing development for Gloucestershire is a key 
component of the Tewkesbury Borough Strategic Economic Plan;  
 

h) Modular Housing could help in delivering a large proportion of the housing 
requirements for Gloucestershire;  
 

i) Resistance to development by the local community can create barriers to 
development. The Scrutiny Committee may wish to consider ways of 
overcoming this resistance, with emphasis on improving engagement with 
the 16 to 50 age group;  
 

j) The Scrutiny Committee requested an update on issues affecting on 
Broadband delivery in rural areas. Poor coverage in some parts of the county 
is still considered a barrier to economic growth;  

k) The impact of BREXIT and the UK leaving the European Union could have 
an impact on the economic development of the County and should be 
considered in line with growth proposals;  
 

l) Proposals for seeking elevated status/branding as a National Park could 
have an impact on future planning proposals and development. The matter 
to be referred to the Senior Officer Group for further consideration.  
 

Mike Dawson, as Chairman of the Senior Officer Group, agreed to note the 
comments raised during the discussion and to feed back to the Scrutiny Committee 
at future meetings. Noting the decision for the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee 
to provide updates on the work of the Scrutiny Committee at Joint Committee 
meetings, it was suggested, as representative on the Joint Committee and 
Chairman of the Senior Officer Group, the Chief Executive attend Scrutiny 
Committee meetings, subject to his availability.  
 
Encouraged by the information received during the presentation and satisfied with 
the successful outcome of the meeting, the Scrutiny Committee thanked the Chief 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 6 - 
 

Executive and representatives of Tewkesbury Borough Council for their 
contributions to what they considered a very useful and worthwhile meeting.  
 

6. MEMBER'S UPDATE  
 
Pete Carr, (Lead Commissioner: Skills and Employment for the Gloucestershire 
First Local Enterprise Partnership and Gloucestershire County Council), gave a 
verbal update on current (Tewkesbury related) growth issues.  
 
The following information was noted: -  
 
Growth Hub 
 
It was reported that GFirst LEP was currently in the process of expanding Growth 
Hub provision across Gloucestershire and had made a significant investment of 
almost £500,000 to create a Tier 2 Growth Hub based in Tewkesbury. The Growth 
Hub is anticipated to open in 2018, forming part of a major investment across 31 
libraries in the county to create Tier 3 Growth Hubs, including those in Tewkesbury 
Borough. 
 
Airport 
 
GFirst LEP have invested £550,000 to create a new access road for 
Gloucestershire Airport, resulting in significant expansion in business activity at the 
airport. It was reported that the LEP consider the expansion of the airport as a piece 
of critical infrastructure for the County. 
 
Longford 
 
Growth Deal 3 allocation included over £4.5 million towards the upgrade of access 
to the Longford Housing development. This important funding releases £3.3 million 
of private sector leverage, 1300 homes, 630 jobs, and 8.3 hectares of employment 
land. The scheme also provides a new roundabout on the A40 and a link road to 
the site. It also upgrades capacity at the existing Longford roundabout. 
 
Junctions 9 and 10 of the M5 Motorway  
 
The GFirst LEP is an active member of the Partnerships working to improve 
Junction 9 of the M5 Motorway and the A46. It was reported that the LEP was 
actively involved in corralling neighbouring LEP’s in the Midlands to support these 
initiatives. 
 
GFirst LEP is also an active campaigner and partner in the proposals to create an 
all-ways Junction 10 of the M5, which would positively impact on local businesses 
in the Tewkesbury area.  
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 7 - 
 

Careers and Enterprise  
 
The Lead Commissioner advised members that the education team at the County 
Council provided careers advice and support across secondary schools in 
Gloucestershire and had developed positive relationships with the schools in 
Tewkesbury Borough. Skills based presentations on three ESF funded skills and 
employment projects to be presented to the Scrutiny Committee at the committee 
meeting on 29 November 2017.  
 

7. WORK PLAN  
 
The work plan was noted.  
 
A detailed review of the work plan to be considered at the committee meeting on 29 
November 2017. The review to include consideration of the arrangements for the 
committee meeting to be held at the Cotswold District Offices on 22 February 2018.  
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
 
 

 
Meeting concluded at 13.00 pm  

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 29th November 2017
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)
1. Gloucestershire Growth Deal
1.1 Current project funding
The current status of the projects that are going through the approval and funding process is as follows:

Stage of Process Project/s Outline Business Cases

Approved All, except A38/B4066 access to Berkeley Scheme. 
Project has been withdrawn by promoter due to 
anticipated poor benefits/costs ratio outcome 

Conditional funding letters
issued

All for GD1 & 2. GD3 projects have not received 
conditional funding letters. There is no immediate 
requirement for this.

Due diligence commenced 22 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; Airport; 
Blackfriars; Cyber Skills; Growth Hub expansion; 
Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; 
Cinderford spine road; RAU Rural Innovation 
Centre; Gloucester Central Transport Hub; 
Metz Way; A40 Benhall Bus Lane;
A40 Over Roundabout, Cinderford New College 
Campus, Digital Retail Innovation Centre, A419 
Corridor improvements, Cheltenham Spa Railway 
Station, Gloucester South West Bypass

Due diligence completed 21 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; Airport; 
Blackfriars; Cyber Skills; Growth Hub expansion; 
Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges;
Cinderford spine road; RAU Rural Innovation 
Centre; Gloucester Central Transport Hub; 
Metz Way; A40 Benhall Bus Lane; 
A40 Over Roundabout, Cinderford New College 
Campus, Digital Retail Innovation Centre, A419 
Corridor improvements, Cheltenham Spa Railway 
Station

Due diligence completed but
project not being progressed

1 project: A40 Benhall Bus Lane

GFirst LEP Investment Panel
review of projects due
diligence findings and
recommendation to the LEP
Board

2 projects, Digital Retail innovation Centre (£400k) 
and A419 Corridor Improvements (£4.36m) were 
recommended for approval at the Investment 
Panel Meeting 26-9-17. 
Cheltenham Spa Station Improvements will come 
forward to Investment Panel 28-11-17 for 
recommendation to approve.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



GFirst LEP Board approval for
funding agreement

19 projects: GREEN; STEM projects x 4; Airport; 
Blackfriars; Cyber Skills; Growth Hub Expansion; 
Growth Hub Network; Berkeley Bridges; 
Cinderford spine road; RAU Rural Innovation 
Centre; Gloucester Central Transport Hub; 
Metz Way/Abbeymead Avenue;
A40 Over Roundabout, Cinderford New College 
campus, Digital Retail Innovation Centre, 
A419 Corridor Improvements.

1.2 Project reporting (Q1 17/18 to 30.06.17)
Note - due to changes in reporting system for government consolidated Q2 figures are not yet 
available. Will be published for December LEP Board meeting.

The out turn from the current Growth Deal programme to date is £38.06 (prev £35.45m) which
reflects the agreed cumulative under spend on the programme to March 2017 of £5.232m, recovery is 
forecast during 2017/8, mainly in Q4.

The actual cumulative total spend (including direct leverage/match) is £36.22m (prev £28.99m)
Forecast Direct Match funding declared to date £53.72m (prev £52.78m). Higher than expected
match (public sector) from GREEN and Blackfriars projects puts us well ahead of forecast
already. Expected that all direct match will have occurred by 2021.

The total leverage (direct and follow-on) declared by the projects (i.e. includes some committed
but not yet spent) is unchanged at £75.27m (prev £75.25m). Currently forecast for total leverage is 
£313m, with strong private sector investment in GREEN, Airport & Blackfriars (eg Cityheart development 
of 295 student units).
Jobs – DIRECT jobs to date 1180 (prev 1176) associated directly with projects. Wider jobs impacts to be 
assessed periodically. Jobs to date mostly from Growth Hub activity, GREEN and Gloucester Airport.
The following documents have been provided in addition to the summary above. These are also
published on the GFirst LEP website;

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/How-are-we-doing~q~/ 

i) Forward Look: 
Revision 11 of the Forward look is now available. Notable changes are the movement of the Gloucester 
South West By-pass to a February 2018 approval date, subject to funding being identified.

ii) Projects Summary: Forecast outputs from each project, the total for each metric, and a
comparison to the Growth Deal. The revised Summary Outputs Table now including the GD3 schemes is 
attached for info.
NB on all metrics, the forecast exceeds the commitment in the Growth Deal. 

Page 18

http://www.gfirstlep.com/Projects-in-Gloucestershire/How-are-we-doing~q~/


iii) Dashboard: Visual representation of summary data including progress against annual 
forecasts.

Updated Quarterly. Q2 update not yet available, will be issued ahead of Dec Board.

1.3 Process for re-allocation of Growth Deal Funds

The bid-submission deadline for revised/new ‘exceptional’ bids was 10th Nov.

A total of 12 revised/new bids were received against the re-allocation funds available, with a total value 
of £25.4m against an available fund of £5.043m.

A summary table is attached for information. Some of the proposed outputs are subject to validation 
and have been moderated/estimated where there is some uncertainty.

Also attached is the summary timetable for the decisions on the re-allocation.

2)  Board recruitment

Pleased to announce the appointment of three new Board members to the GFirst LEP Board; 
Deborah Potts, Russell Marchant and Jenny Raymond. This follows an open recruitment process 
where nearly 100 local business leaders applied. Nigel Riglar and David Hagg were both 
involved in the interview process.

Deborah Potts is currently CEO of both Active Gloucestershire and The Music Works. Her skills 
lie in maximising social impact through strategic development and income generation. As 
previous CEO of Women in Sport and interim Director of Operations for the English Federation 
of Disability Sport, she also has a strong track record in championing equality of opportunity for 
marginalised groups.

Russell Marchant - Russell has been the Principal and CEO of Hartpury College since September 
2012, prior to that eleven years as Principal and CEO of Barony College, Dumfriesshire.

Jenny Raymond - Jenny is a partner with Harrison Clark Rickerbys’ dispute resolution 
department in Cheltenham.

Dev Chakraborty 17/11/2017

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal Projects 'Forward Look' Key  Milestones

(Based on latest  information at time of publication) Final business case preparation and due diligence/assessment

Nov‐17 Investment panel/board review/decision

Rev 11 Funding agreement (subject to board approval)

Formal project launch 

Notes Start of construction/implementation

All planned projects are still subject to  investment appraisal and LEP Board approval 

Q2 FY 18/19 Q4 FY 2019/20 Q1 FY 2019/20 Q2 FY 2019/20 Q3 FY 2019/20 Q4

LGF 2020

Project Masterlist Category Summary Status RAG Rating £m's Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan‐Mar Apr‐Jun Jul‐Sept Oct‐Dec Jan‐Mar Future dates

Growth Hub Expansion
Business 
Support

Expanded Core Growth Hub and New 
Business School @ UoG

Construction under way on 
site.

£5.000 Est Completion

Growth Hub Network
Business 
Support

Network of Growth Hubs across the 
county

Tier 2 centres agreed, Gloucs 
Libraries roll‐out in prog

£5.000 Est Completion

Farm 491
Business 
Support

Agri‐tech innovation and business 
incubator centre (RAU)

Phase 1 (Harn Hill) now open, 
main campus due May 2018 

£2.920 Est Completion

Glos Airport
Business 
Support

Access road to open up land for 
development

Project complete, first new 
build to complete Dec17

£0.550

Retail Entrepenuer
Business 
Support

Retail skills & digital high street pilot 
scheme

Approved for full funding. 
Work to start Jan18

£0.400 Inv Panel Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project Launch Est Completion

Cheltenham Cyber Park *
Enabling 

Infrastructure
Road and other infrastructure to 
facilitate Cheltenham Cyber Park 

Early planning stages £22.000
Submit 

Business case

Construction 
start summer 

2019

Cinderford Northern Link Road
Enabling 

Infrastructure

Access road enabling new college 
campus and first phase of 

development of Northern Qtr, 

Road officially open 26‐8‐17, 
landscaping on‐going until 

Oct/Nov
£3.800

Final 
Completion

A40 Longford Traffic Scheme Housing
Traffic mitigation to release a 

strategic housing site
Early planning stages, scheme 

development
£4.530 Inv Panel Board

Blackfriars & Quayside Housing
De‐risking and preparation of site for 

development

Student accomodation on 
track, phase 2 demolitions 

(Quayside) in prog.
£4.130 Est Completion

Advanced Renewable Energy 
Resource Centre (ARERC)

Innovation
Renewable energy research & 
comunications centre, Berkeley 

Green

Under review pending ESIF 
funding situation

£4.000 Due Diligence Inv Panel Board
Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start
Completion 
Sept 2019

GREEN Skills Centre Skills
Gloucs Renewable Energy, 

Engineering & Nuclear Skills Centre
Building complete, now fully 

open.
£5.000

Berkley Green Cyber Security 
Centre

Skills
Cyber Security skills centre, dual 

location UoG & Berkely
Official opening held 10th Nov 

2017
£3.000 Centre Opens

Cinderford New College 
Campus

Skills
Funding to support build of new 
Gloscol campus in Cinderford

Funding agreed, construction 
started May 2017

£2.600 Est Completion

Gloucestershire STEM centres Skills
STEM teaching facility upgrades at 5 

sites across Gloucs.
Complete, now in delivery 

phase.
£2.096

Elmbridge (Tail End Major DfT 
scheme)

Transport
Major roundabout upgrade A40, key 

strategic route.
Complete. £9.070 Complete

Gloucester Transport Hub** Transport
New Transport Hub for Gloucester & 

highways mods
Under construction due to 

open summer 2018
£6.400 Est Completion

A419 Corridor Improvements Transport
Junction improvements along A419 
between M5 J13 and Stonehouse

Approved for full funding 
10‐10‐17

£4.360 Inv Panel Board
Funding 

Agreement
Project Launch

Construction 
start

Completion mid 
2020

A40 Over Roundabout ** Transport
Widening approaches to the 

roundabout & provision of a third 
circulatory lane 

Detailed design & planning in 
progress. Start on Site Jan/Feb 

18
£2.230

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Gloucester South West By Pass Transport
Widening of Llanthony Road section 

of South West bypass. 
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£2.000 Inv Panel Board Project Launch

Construction 
start

Est Completion

A38 Berkeley Bridges Transport Replacement Northbound bridge Complete June 2017 £1.990 Complete

B4063 Staverton Bridge 
Junction

Transport
Upgrade to the B4063/Old 
Gloucester Road junction

Scheme & Business case being 
developed

£1.600 Assessment
Inv Panel & 

Board Q4 18/19
Construction 
start Q1 20/21

Completion end 
2020

Cheltenham Spa Railway 
Station**

Transport
Improvement to station forecourt & 

additional parking
Ready to go to for full approval 

Nov/Dec17
£1.497 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start

A38 B4066 access to Berkley Transport Junction upgrade A38/B4066 
Scheme withdrawn by GCC 

Sept 2017
‐ Scheme withdrawn Sept 2017

Lydney Transport Strategy Transport
Local junction improvements and 

cycle access
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project Launch
Construction 

start

St Barnabas Roundabout Transport Roundabout upgrade 
Scheme & Business case being 

developed
£1.000 Assessment

Inv Panel & 
Board Q4 18/19

Construction 
start Q1 20/21

Completion end 
2020

Abbeymead /Metz Way** Transport
Junction & Pedestrian Crossing 

upgrades (smart signals)
Work to start in spring 2018 £0.500

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Re‐allocated scheme(s) TBA Revised Scheme(s) from re‐allocation Submissions under review.  £5.043 Board Re‐bid Process Board
Agreed 
Portfolio

Assessment
Inv Panel & 

Board
Funding 

Agreement(s)
Construction

* DfT 'Retained' scheme currently Sub‐Total (committed) £101.716

** Original GLTB scheme Agreed Govt Profile £101.716

Variance £0.000

FY 2018/19 Q3

Completion works under way

Under Construction

FY 2017/18 Q3 FY 2017/18 Q4 FY 2018/19 Q1 FY 2018/19 Q2

Delivery Phase

201920182017

Under construction

Project now in delivery phase

Project now in delivery phase

Under Construction Delivery Phase

Network Roll‐Out in progress, full network in operation by Spring 2019

Harnhill site up and running, main campus/joint Growth Hub under construction

Project now in delivery phase

Outline business case development DfT assessment

AssessmentScheme & Business Case being developed

In progress

Business Case 
development/revision

Scheme Development

Detailed design & land acquisition

detail design & planning

Scheme & Business Case being developed

Final Business case/Due Diligence

Scheme & Business Case being developed

Final Business case/Due 
Diligence

Scheme held to limit disruption on network due to other works

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary

As of 30-6-17

Current Forecasts to end of programme (March 2021) with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's
Public Sector 
Leverage £m's

Commercial 
Floorspace m2 

Employment 
Land

Skills 
Capital m2 App'ships

BCR (Road 
schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 10,000,000£     Business Support 0 6644 £0.05 £24.5 1477 0 3800 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£          Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport 550,000£              Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

Retail Entrepreneur 400,000£              Business Support 0 50 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£    Enabling Infrastructure 500 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£          Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

A40 Longford Traffic Mitigation * 4,530,000£      Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£          Housing 250 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Advanced Renewables  Centre 4,000,000£          Innovation 0 0 £3.0 £0.8 2000 0 0 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£       Skills 0 125 £19.5 £20.6 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£          Skills 0 127 £4.0 £2.0 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  ‐ New Gloscol Campus * 2,600,000£      Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£       Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail‐end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£       Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub ** 6,400,000£          Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Corridor Improvements 4,360,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

A40 Roundabout & Highnam Lodge ** 2,230,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.0 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.1 £2.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£       Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction 1,600,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station ** 1,497,000£          Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Transport Strategy 1,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout 1,000,000£          Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way ** 500,000£              Transport 0 0 £1.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 4

Re‐allocated project(s) 5,043,000£      TBA 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Forecast Totals* 101,716,000£  2315 15584 £218.4 £98.7 68318 75.3 21803 1577

Growth Deal (1,2 & 3) Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014

* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GFirst LEP Project Pipeline Key

Estimate (based on credible attribution) 

November 2017 Moderated (where original viewed as over‐stated)

GD3/Exp Number and Title of proposal Summary
Funding 

sought £ms
Mimimum 
request

Category Organisation
Complexity 
Rating (RAG)

Private sector 
involvement / 

support

Direct 
Leverage 

(private) £ms

Direct 
Leverage 
(public) 
£ms

Follow‐on 
Inv £ms

Jobs 
(direct)

Jobs 
(indirect)

Housing
Commercial 
floorspace 

sq m

Skills Capital 
m2 

Land developed
Apprenticeships/
skills outcomes

Sustainable transport
Links to other GD 

investments
Other Notes

GD3 Gloucester Station
Re‐development of the station 
underpass to improve linkage and 
development of station forecourt

£4.300 £2.900 Enabling Infrastructure  GCC G GWR 7.700 0 30 0 400 550 10000 0 5.3 20
Creates improved links to 

support mode shift

Glos Transport Hub £6.4m
Blackfriars and Quayside 
regeneration £4.13m

Indirect private sector leverage 
£50m (?)

6,000 people connected

Exp Merrywalks 
Aprivate sector led re‐development of 
the Merrywalks shopping centre in 
Stroud, to address decline of the core

£4.000 £4.000 Business Support
Dransfield/SD

C
A DPL 14.000 2.00 10.00 200 600 0 20292 0 1.4 0

Supports town centre 
reducing out of town travel

Commercial scheme?

GD3
RAU ‐ Cirencester Enterprise Quarter 
(CEQ)

New roundabout/site access road to 
unlock the 17.1 Ha site for enterprise 
development. (Outline planning 
already approved).

£2.500 £2.500 Business Support RAU G Bathurst Est 0.000 0 16 0 2500 0 25000 0 17.1 0
Farm 491

(RAU Innovation)
High value business/jobs 

incubation

Exp Southwest by‐pass additional funds

Additional funds to deliver the SW By‐
pass scheme (£2m already allocated) 
based on additional land required and 
detail design

£2.330 £2.330 Enabling Infrastructure  GCC A ‐ 0.160 2.81 0.00 0.00 300 1000 2000 0 4.5 0
A40 Over Roundabout, 

Blackfriars
Based on revised design/scheme 

costs

GD3 Brimscombe Port

Land remediation and water 
management infrastructure to unlock 
mixed use re‐development of canal 
basin. 

£2.100 £2.100 Housing
Stroud District 

Council
G ‐ 0.000 3 32 50 0 178 2330 0 4.0 10

Cycling/pedestrian routes 
developed

n/a
Clear market failure due to high 

remediation costs.

GD3 A419 Eco‐Park road preparation
Road mitigation scheme to support 
phase 1 of the Eco‐park development. 
New FGR stadium & sports hub

£2.000 £2.000 Enabling Infrastructure  Ecotricity A Ecotricity 2.160 20.00 200 0 99 10000 0 20.6 0
Potential park & 

ride/transport hub on site
A419 Corridor 
improvements

No certainty of phase 2 Eco 
business park

Exp Cheltenham Spa Phase2
Phase 2 of station masterplan. New 
ticket office/forecourt, station 
facilities and public realm. 

£2.000 £2.000 Enabling Infrastructure  GWR A GWR 0.175 0.00 3.00 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0
Will support modal shift, 
specifically with growth og 

GCHQ/Cyber park

Cheltenham Spa phase 1 & 
Chelt Cyber Park

Capacity issue

GD3 Airfield Development ‐ Meteor Park 
New access from B4063 and site 
access road to unlock 4ha 
development site at Meteor park.

£1.885 £1.885 Business Support
Gloucestershi
re Airport

G Gloucs Airport 3.500 0 3.5 65 20 0 7500 0 4.0 4
GD2 Gloucs Airport South 

East Camp
Enhances a key strategic asset 
that supports inlocation/DFI

GD3
Cinderford Northern Quarter Site 
Preparation Works

Land investigation and remediation to 
de‐risk/unlock phase 2 mixed use re‐
development of former coal mine 
site. 

£1.520 £1.520 Enabling Infrastructure 
FoD District 
Council

A ‐ 0.000 0.060 42.000 0 455 195 18000 0 14.3 12
reduction in commuting into 

Gloucester
CNQ (1) Spine Road £3.8m
Cinderford College £2.6m.

HCA involvement

GD3 GET Engineering Technicain Expansion
Expansion of their facilities and 
cpapcity to support significant growth 
in Engineering Apprenticeships

£1.000 £0.800 skills EDF G GET 0.12 0.00 0.00 19 120 0 0 660 0.0 230
Retains trainees within 

county, eg. EDF travelling to 
Portsmouth

STEM centres Competition with Gloscol?

Exp Tech to Plate Agri‐tech centre

Animal husbandry/livestock 
productivity and traceability centre. 
Supports the Agri‐tech & food 
production agenda.

£1.000 £1.000 Innovation Hartpury G ‐ 0.200 0.75 0.00 20 140 0 0 500 0.5 140 STEM centres
Close working with LEADER 

project & LANTRA

Exp
Cirencester College Animal Science 
Centre

Animal science laboratories to 
support vocational/FE entry to 
Foundation degree/HE programmes. 
To support growth in demand. 

£0.800 £0.500 Skills
Cirencester 
College

G ‐ 0.000 0.08 0.00 3 100 0 0 300 0.0 611
Farm 491

(RAU Innovation)
Working in close collaboration 

with RAU

Sub totals £25.435 £23.535 n/a 21.86 8 88 515 4635 2022 69622 0 32.3 30 0 0 0.000

Complexity 
Rating (RAG)

Private sector 
involvement / 

support

Leverage 
(private)

Leverage 
(public)

Follow‐on 
Inv £ms

Jobs 
(direct)

Jobs 
(indirect)

Housing
Commercial 
floorspace 

sq m

Skills Capital 
m2 

Infrastructure 
(employment 
land in Ha)

Apprenticeships Sustainable transport
Links to other GD 

investments
Other

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Growth Deal Funds Re‐allocation 
 
Final timetable for the re‐allocation process is summarised below :‐ 
 

 10th October – LEP Board final decision on current projects and confirm available 
funds 

 By 12th October – confirm to all promoters of previously submitted GD3 bids, the 
LEP board and the GEGJC (Joint Committee) the available funds and timing of 
those funds and the deadline for submission of revised or new ‘exceptional’ bids, 
i.e. Friday 10th November 2017. 

 10th Nov, 5:00pm. Deadline for receipt of bids 

 W/c 13th Nov Briefing papers prepared for sub‐group meeting. 

 23rd Nov LEP Board sub‐group meeting to review and rank the received bids for 
indicative funding allocation from the confirmed available funds. 

 W/c 4th Dec, papers issued for final decision at 12th Dec Board meeting 

 12th Dec LEP Board meeting, final decision on re‐allocation of funds. 

 13th  Dec communicate outcomes to all scheme promoters. 
 

 
N.Hopwood 
3‐11‐17 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 12

Employment and Skills Update for GEGJC, GFirst LEP Board and Economic Scrutiny Committee – November 2017

This report is intended to provide an update on several aspects of employment and skills in Gloucestershire. It is divided into two sections:

1. Overview of European Social Fund (ESF) Skills and Employability Projects in Gloucestershire

2. Update on Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board

1. Overview of European Social Fund (ESF) Skills and Employability Projects in Gloucestershire

1.1 Gloucestershire ESIF Strategy

The Gloucestershire European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) Strategy was developed by GFirst LEP in conjunction with GCC and a range 
of other stakeholders to provide a framework and set of priorities for the investment of EU funding in the county for the period 2014-2020. 
Owing to national delays between the managing authorities (Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and Department of 
Work and Pensions (DWP) and the European Commission, several of the programmes started in 2016 and 2017 rather than in 2014. In addition 
to this, the Brexit decision has impacted on the timelines for delivery of the programmes and on the money available for them. For example, the 
skills projects are all meant to be completed between 2016 and July 2018.

The ESIF Strategy can be found at http://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/eu-structural-investment-funds-strategy/ and the original 
rationales for each of the projects below can be found in the relevant sections of the Strategy.

An overview of the various EU-funded projects in the county can be found at http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/ and please use the filter 
‘European Funded’.

1.2 ESF-funded skills projects

There are currently five skills projects funded by European Social Fund (ESF) and contracted through the Education and Skills Funding Agency 
(ESFA) in Gloucestershire. Originally, these projects were envisaged to be delivered over a three year period but ESFA and DWP concerns over 
devolution of skills budgets and the impacts of Brexit have reduced the delivery time for the projects. This means that all skills projects via the 
ESFA currently have to be completed by July 2018, although the ESFA has just consulted on the possibility of extending this completion deadline 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7

http://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/our-vision/eu-structural-investment-funds-strategy/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


Page 2 of 12

to March 2019 and also on the option to increase project budgets where a case for growth can be made and supported by the project manager, 
the LEP and the ESFA. GCC and GFirst LEP have confirmed support for extending the project delivery timescale to March 2019 and to increase 
project funding, where appropriate. The timeline for the ESFA decisions about project extension and funding increases is not yet clear but it is 
hoped to know the outcome early in 2018 so that projects don’t begin winding projects down for a July finish.

Details of these projects are shown in the table below. 

Funding for these five projects currently totals £6.94m and, overall, they are targeted to reach over 1,500 SMEs and approx. 4,400 individuals.
Pete Carr, Lead Commissioner – Skills and Employment is the GCC/GFirst LEP lead for these projects and works with the ESFA contract managers 
and project leads in the contracted organisations to monitor and review progress and manage any required changes to the projects. Sarah 
Danson at GFirst LEP/Growth Hub is leading for the LEP on the Gloucestershire College project to deliver entrepreneur skills. All skills projects 
are expected to work closely with the Growth Hub to ensure that skills offers to businesses in the County are promoted, communicated and 
understood properly.

The Gloucestershire ESIF Committee is the body where all EU funded projects are commissioned and reported back to and Cllr. Shaun Parsons 
GCC) sits on this Committee supported by Claire Edwards, as does Steve Lydon (Stroud DC)  supported by Gideon Darley and Adam Starkey (LEP 
Board vice-chair) supported by Mally Findlater and Kate Hull.

Individual project performance will be reported back to the Gloucestershire ESIF Committee at the January 2018 meeting. Further details of the 
two skills projects led by South Gloucestershire and Stroud College (the EDGE project focusing on developing meaningful work experience 
opportunities within local SMEs) and the GOAL project (supporting SMEs to offer more apprenticeships and getting more apprentices in the 
county) will be presented at the employment and skills-focused Economic Scrutiny Committee meeting on 29th November and this will include a 
Q&A session about these projects.

1.3 Employability and social inclusion projects

In addition to the skills projects there are two further employability ESF projects, one contracted via DWP directly and managed by learndirect 
(the Workstart project) and one social inclusion and employability project contracted via Big Lottery and managed by a combination of 
Gloucestershire County  Council and Gloucestershire Gateway Trust (the Going the Extra Mile or GEM project). Contracts for these two projects 
are £1,215,000 and £3,100,000 respectively.

Both the employability and the social inclusion & employability projects were intended by GFirst LEP and GCC as initial investments in these 
areas of work with further ESF funding to be invested once the success of these two projects had been monitored and reviewed. Currently, 

P
age 30



Page 3 of 12

GFirst LEP and GCC are unable to progress these ‘next phase’ investments because of the Brexit decision and a lack of further information from 
DWP as the managing authority and Big lottery as the opt-in partner organisation. 

If GFirst LEP and GCC are unable to commission these two follow-on projects then Gloucestershire residents will miss out on a further £3.35m 
investment of ESF funding. (£1,763,000 of ESF funding direct through the DWP employability contract and a further £1,597,400 via Big Lottery.) 
Pete Carr is trying to resolve this with DWP and Big Lottery and the newly-appointed regional lead for Big Lottery is aware and supportive of the 
need to get this resolved. One option proposed by DWP is for a local direct call to be issued for the remaining funding available. This is currently 
being explored but the disadvantages of this approach would be the lack of national match funding that was possible through the opt-in 
arrangements with both DWP and Big Lottery and the local commissioning, procurement and project management resources needed to 
undertake this locally. DWP and Big Lottery have both charged management fees for the work they have done to support the commissioning, 
procurement and project management activity so, again, this is also being explored as part of a possible local solution.

From a skills and employability perspective, the additional impacts for GCC are fewer referrals to and from Adult Education Gloucestershire and 
so fewer individuals being able to get access to community learning and skills development opportunities to build their skills, confidence and 
employability. There are also impacts on the commissioning of suitable employability and skills support for a range of customers further from 
the labour market, including residents with learning difficulties and disabilities as GCC does not have further resources to invest in this.

As with the skills projects via the ESFA, individual project performance will be reported back to the Gloucestershire ESIF Committee at the 
January 2018 meeting. Further details of the employability project led by learndirect (pre-work and in-work support for unemployed people in 
the county) will be presented at the employment and skills-focused Economic Scrutiny Committee meeting on 29th November and this will 
include a Q&A session about the project.

1.4 Project Details

Project theme Project names
Current project 
name
(Project name 
originally referred 
to in the GFirst LEP 
Strategic Economic 
Plan and ESIF 
Strategy)

Lead 
organisation

Project explanation Project 
funding

Lead 
organisation 
contact 
name

Lead organisation email

Skills: Expanding EDGE Project South The Education Developing £770,000 via Clare Wilson Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk

P
age 31

mailto:Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk


Page 4 of 12

and improving 
work experience 
opportunities

(Employment 
Pathfinder)

Gloucestershire 
and Stroud 
College

Gloucestershire’s Employability 
(EDGE) project is a pioneering 
scheme that aims to improve 
the employability skills of young 
people by working with 
learners, employers and 
education providers whilst 
focusing on the long term 
business and economic needs 
of Gloucestershire. The project 
concentrates on identifying the 
current skills gaps and 
shortages, with the long term 
aim of retaining talent and 
knowledge in the county.

The EDGE project will engage at 
least 450 of Gloucestershire’s 
micro, small and medium sized 
enterprises (SMEs) to ascertain 
how to make education in 
schools and colleges as well as 
careers advice and guidance, 
more relevant to the 
workplace. It will also set up 
work placements for 575 
students/pupils.

Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

and 
Melvin 
Packham

mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk

Skills: Increasing 
skills related to 
low carbon 
technologies in 
Gloucestershire 

Skills Support for 
the Workforce: 
Low Carbon

(Skills for low 
carbon)

Serco The aim of the project is to 
provide individuals with the 
opportunities to develop the 
skills that will enable them to 
progress in employment. 

The project provides support to 
employers to take on and 
develop individuals to fill 

£2,579,250 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Rob Matts 
and 
Lily Matic

Rob.Matts@serco.com 
lily.matic@serco.com

P
age 32

mailto:mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com


Page 5 of 12

intermediate, technical and 
higher level skills gaps and 
shortages. Training will be 
provided to approx. 1600 
individuals.

The priority sectors for the 
delivery of the Services are 
those within Low Carbon, 
Engineering and Construction 
industries and their related 
supply chains. 

Skills: Increasing 
Science 
Technology 
Engineering and 
Maths (STEM) 
skills in 
Gloucestershire

Skills Support for 
the Workforce: 
STEM

(STEM)

Serco This project provides STEM 
related training which will 
support the development of a 
skilled and adaptable workforce 
in SMEs in priority sectors in 
Gloucestershire.

The project delivers short 
courses and qualifications to 
improve STEM-related skills in 
the workforce and aims to 
reach 556 individuals.

£859,950 via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Rob Matts 
and 
Lily Matic

Rob.Matts@serco.com 
lily.matic@serco.com

Skills: Developing 
entrepreneurship 
skills for students 
in 
Gloucestershire

TBC

(Employment 
pathfinder - 
Entrepreneur 
skills)

Gloucestershire 
College

There is a positive 
entrepreneurial culture in 
Gloucestershire with 14% of the 
employment base self- 
employed. In addition to this 
the county has the second 
highest survival rate of start-up 
businesses after three years. 

This project aims to build on 
this entrepreneurial culture and 
to drive economic growth 

£1,023,200 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Lisa Taylor lisa.taylor@gloscol.ac.uk

P
age 33

mailto:Rob.Matts@serco.com
mailto:lily.matic@serco.com
mailto:lisa.taylor@gloscol.ac.uk


Page 6 of 12

ensuring entrepreneurs, 
particularly in high value 
sectors, have access to the 
support and skills provision 
they need. 

This project will support the 
development of approx. 660 
entrepreneurs of any age by 
providing the fundamental skills 
needed to develop and grow a 
successful business. 

Skills: 
Apprenticeship 
Support

Growing 
Opportunities for 
Apprenticeships 
Locally (GOAL)

(Apprenticeship 
Clearing House)

South 
Gloucestershire 
and Stroud 
College

GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire 
County Council and other 
partners are keen for more 
local employers (especially 
SMEs and micro-businesses) to 
take on apprentices and get the 
support they need to do this. 

This project supports the local 
drive and the Government’s 
aim to increase economic 
growth through the 
establishment of 
apprenticeship opportunities, 
the recruitment of apprentices, 
the National Apprenticeship 
Service and it will support SMEs 
wanting to recruit apprentices 
but who find the current 
system complicated.

£1,708,000 
via 
Education 
and Skills 
Funding 
Agency 
(ESFA)

Clare Wilson 
and 
Melvin 
Packham

Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk
mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk

Employability: 
Supporting local 
people into work

Work Start 
Gloucestershire

learndirect This project aims to support a 
range of unemployed people to 
help them overcome any 
barriers they face getting 
into/back into employment. In 

£1,215,000 Natasha 
Panchbhaya

Natasha.Panchbhaya@learn
direct.com

P
age 34

mailto:Clare.Wilson@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:mel.packham@sgscol.ac.uk
mailto:Natasha.Panchbhaya@learndirect.com
mailto:Natasha.Panchbhaya@learndirect.com


Page 7 of 12

particular, it will help people 
who are long-term unemployed 
or inactive or who have a basic 
skills needs.

Social 
inclusion/Employ
ability:

Going the Extra 
Mile

GCC and 
Gloucestershire 
Gateway Trust

The Going the Extra Mile (GEM) 
Project aims to engage with and 
support Gloucestershire’s 
hardest-to-reach, most 
vulnerable unemployed and 
financially-excluded people, 
who face multiple barriers to 
work.

GEM’s primary objective is to 
move these people closer 
towards education, training, 
volunteering or work, including 
self-employment. (Including 
referrals to other employability 
support projects or 
programmes).

£3,100,000 
(including 
1:1 match 
funding 
from Big 
Lottery)

Vikki Walters, 
GCC and 
Jason 
Dunsford, 
GGT

vikki.walters@gloucestershir
e.gov.uk

jason@ggtrust.org 

2. Update on Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board (GESB)

2.1 Latest meeting of the GESB

The GESB met for its first full meeting on 4th October 2017. Papers can be found at 
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=754  The main focus of the meeting was to review and agree the priorities 
of the Board, based on the evidence base and the priorities explored in the induction sessions in the Summer.

Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cabinet Member – Economy, Skills and Growth represents Gloucestershire County Council on the Board. Steve Lydon, Leader 
of Stroud District Council represents the District Councils. Both provide the public sector employer perspective to the Board and provide the link 

P
age 35

mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jason@ggtrust.org
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=754


Page 8 of 12

to the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) and Russell Marchant, Principal of Hartpury College and GFirst LEP Board 
member provides the link to the GFirst LEP Board.

2.2 Evidence base and initial skills strategy

An evidence base for the Board has been prepared by Kathryn Wagstaff and Pete Carr and is available at http://www.gfirstlep.com/about-
us/skills-for-business/ The evidence base provides a wide-ranging overview of employment and skills in the county and was developed to enable 
Board members to identify the priority issues for the Board to work on as well as any specific aspects to ‘drill down into’ further e.g. careers 
information, advice and guidance, apprenticeships, etc.). This in turn will enable the Board to prepare a skills strategy for Gloucestershire. Pete 
Carr will continue to have individual meetings with the LEP Board Chair and chief executive, District leaders, chief executives and economic 
development leads and with Steve Lydon and Lyndon Stowe as the public sector employer representatives, to ensure the GESB has a two-way 
flow of information with key stakeholders and that emerging priorities for employment and skills are highlighted. 

During 2018, Pete Carr and members of the GESB will develop an employment and skills strategy for Gloucestershire to meet the emerging 
needs of the local economy that will also form the key messages in the employment and skills section of the Industrial Strategy for 
Gloucestershire. Government will be issuing more guidance about this in November/December 2017.

2.3 Members of the Employment and Skills Board

Members confirmed on the Board to date are:

Name Role on ESB Position Organisation
Rebekka Bishop Cyber sector 

representative and STEM 
specialist

Senior Project Manager
Chair of Gloucestershire 
STEM Network

Northrop Grumman

Matthew Burgess Further Education 
representative 

Principal Gloucestershire College

Michael Carter Construction sector 
representative

Managing Director E.G.Carter and 
Company Limited

Sean Clee Health and social care 
employer 
respresentative

Chief Executive 2gether NHS 
Foundation Trust

Catherine Coughlan Department of Work DWP/Jobcentre Plus

P
age 36

http://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/about-us/skills-for-business/


Page 9 of 12

and pensions (DWP) 
representative

Jason Dunsford Voluntary sector 
employer 
representative

Head of Employment 
and Skills

Gloucestershire 
Gateway Trust

Julia Falaki Gloucestershire and 
Wiltshire Training 
Partnership 
representative

Partnership Manager Gloucestershire and 
Wiltshire Partnership

Andrew Kirk Vice chair and banking 
and finance sector 
representative

Area Director, 
Gloucestershire
SME Banking

Lloyds Bank

Russell Marchant Higher education 
representative and 
GFirst LEP Board 
member

Principal Hartpury College

Anne Stokes Secondary schools 
representative

Gloucestershire 
Association of 
Secondary Heads

Lynden Stowe Public sector employer 
representative

Cabinet Member – 
Economy, Skills and 
Growth

Gloucestershire County 
Council

Linsey Temple Private training 
provider representative

Chief Executive Gloucestershire 
Engineering Training

Sara-Jane Watkins Further Education 
representative

Principal South Gloucestershire 
and Stroud College

Kathryn Wagstaff of the Strategic Alliance, Pete Carr of GCC and GFirst LEP and Pauline Hartree of GCC will be support the Board and provide 
secretariat support for it.

P
age 37



Page 10 of 12

2.4 Emerging priorities from the GESB

The highest priorities from the group and wider stakeholders at this stage are:

2.4.1 Apprenticeships
Expansion of apprenticeship opportunities in the county has been a long-standing priority for both GFirst LEP and Gloucestershire County 
Council. The Strategic Economic Plan for Gloucestershire and the ESIF Strategy (add links) both support the expansion of apprenticeships in the 
County.

2.4.2      Ageing workforce and dealing with replacement demand
Many local and national businesses across several sectors have an ageing workforce and are experiencing the loss of knowledge and skills as 
older staff retire. In some cases, this knowledge and these skills are not being effectively transferred to younger members of the workforce. In 
other cases, businesses need to enable older workers to work more flexibly in order to retain them for longer. Some work on this has been done 
with larger national/multi-national companies but comparatively little has been done with SMEs and obviously, SMEs make up the vast majority 
(98% of Gloucestershire businesses).

2.4.3 Stronger links between schools and businesses
This has been a priority for GFirst LEP for several years and is included in the Strategic Economic Plan. The intentions of building stronger links 
between schools and local businesses include: engaging students in what local businesses do so they can be informed about possible career 
paths; provide more informed careers choices; assisting in reducing exclusion rates for disengaged students. The current pattern of work in this 
area is complex, partly because of the number of academies in the county and partly because of the range of different organisations undertaking 
this work e.g. GFirst LEP, schools and colleges making their own arrangements for local business links, Stroud District Council have set up and are 
running a ‘Skills for Stroud Employability Charter’. Please also see pages 29-30 in the GESB Evidence Base.

2.4.4 Improved, impartial careers support for schools based on accurate and up-to-date Labour Market Information
Effective and consistent careers information, advice and guidance (IAG) has been a long-term priority for GFirst LEP and GCC and was included in 
discussions with Government as part of the Gloucestershire devolution bid. It is a statutory requirement for schools to provide impartial careers 
guidance but there is a huge disparity in what schools are providing.  Provision can range between schools employing a sole trading careers 
adviser to minimal compliance such as arranging visits to employers and/or mock interviews. It is up to a school’s governing body to decide what 
is in their students’ best interests in terms of careers interventions. There are quality standards which schools are encouraged to comply with, 
such as using a qualified practitioner but provision is very varied; in some schools a teaching member of staff is given responsibility for careers 
guidance provision.  Different schools value careers guidance differently and there is a difference between careers education – which normally 
sits within the PSHE timetable – and careers advice and guidance. Careers guidance is part of OFSTED inspections but pretty low key, although 
more rigour is planned in future. Please also see pages 29-30 in the GESB Evidence Base.

P
age 38



Page 11 of 12

The Board thought that its focus should remain on a small number of high priority aspects of the employment and skills system, particularly 
those above, so that quick and effective impact could be achieved. In addition, other possible priorities were proposed but these were seen as 
lower priority and/or longer-term work for the GESB:

2.4.5 Specific support for certain geographical areas/development areas within the county 
Within Gloucestershire there are a number of important development sites for housing and infrastructure. These sites provide an opportunity 
for working with developers and construction companies to incorporate apprenticeships and other provision as part of the contracts/sub-
contracts for the sites. Currently, GCC and the six District Councils have differing approaches to this, with some acknowledging that more could 
be done to incorporate clauses in the relevant contracts/sub-contracts. 

The GESB recognised that some ‘quick wins’ could probably be achieved by working with GCC, GFirst LEP and District Councils to ensure that 
contracts with construction companies, etc. include requirements for employment and skills (e.g. numbers of apprentices and/or local 
employment opportunities).

2.4.6 Employment and Skills support for inward investment/companies expanding or relocating 
Companies moving into Gloucestershire (inward investment) or those seeking to expand operations or move to other parts of the county have 
commented that they would like help with such things as: understanding the local labour market; recruiting to fill specific skills gaps; easily 
accessible information about sourcing particular training programmes; being able to go to one education and training provider to source training 
for the company, rather than having to go to several. 

The GESB saw this as a longer-term piece of work and not an immediate priority. It also emphasised that this support should be available to all 
existing companies operating in Gloucestershire, ideally through the work of the Growth Hub.

2.4.7 Strengthening Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) provision and encouraging more people to go into STEM careers
Several of the key, growth and emerging sectors in Gloucestershire require staff with strong STEM knowledge and skills. Existing staff will need 
upskilling/retraining in STEM subjects and young people entering the workforce need qualifications and aptitudes that will allow them to 
progress into STEM-related careers. 

Board members did not believe they had enough information about the ‘baseline’ position for this in Gloucestershire and therefore did not feel 
fully equipped to identify this as a priority.

P
age 39



Page 12 of 12

2.5 Business skills survey
GCC has commissioned a business skills survey to inform the work of the GESB, the County Council, GFirst LEP, and the Strategic Alliance. This is 
the first business skills survey undertaken in Gloucestershire since 1996. The survey will be implemented by Wavehill, a company that has 
delivered business surveys in West of England, Devon and Liverpool, amongst others. A steering groups of GCC, GFirst LEP and Strategic Alliance 
staff has been established and the survey will start in December 2017. Findings from the survey will be reported to the GESB at its 11th April 
meeting and built into the workplan for the GESB.

2.6 GESB Next Steps
The next meeting of the GESB will be on 17th January 2018 and that meeting will focus on the work plan for the GESB in relation to the identified 
priorities, on reviewing the Government’s Careers Strategy (due to be published November/December 2017) and on forward planning for the 
employment and skills content for the Gloucestershire Industrial Strategy.

Pete Carr, November 2017

P
age 40



Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool Update AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, 29 November 2017

Report author David Stanley – Accountancy Manager (Section 151 Officer)
Stroud District Council
Tel: 01453 754100
Email: david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

None

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report
To update members of the committee on the 2017/18 financial performance 
forecast of the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool and the Business 
Rates Pilot submission

Recommendations

The Committee:
1. Note the forecast position with the Pool for 2017/18 and the Pilot 

submission.
2. £250k of reserves currently held in the Strategic Economic Fund are used 

for the purposes of match funding the Government’s core funding to 
GFirst LEP in 2018/19; 

3. The first £250k of SEDF revenues arising during 2017/18 are used to 
match fund the Government’s core funding in 2019/20; 

4. The 7 Councils enter into a simple ‘memorandum of understanding’ with 
GFirst LEP for the period 2018-2020;

5. A review of the on-going need for Core Funding match and the correct 
mechanism for achieving this is completed by December 2019; and that,

6. £75k of reserves held in the Strategic Economic Fund is used for the 
purposes of match funding the Inward Investment Service proposed by 
GFirst LEP

Reasons for 
recommendations

The Business Rates Pool outturn for 2016/17 was strong and ensured 
losses incurred in 2014/15 by pool members were repaid.  The forecast for 
2017/18 remains robust, but will be subject to fluctuation at year end as pool 
members review underlying risks posed by appeals. The Pool Management 
Team has taken steps to mitigate the risks of any future losses but the 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9

mailto:david.stanley@stroud.gov.uk


Committee needs to be mindful of the current risks.

Resource 
Implications

Pool members must be aware of the risks associated with Pooling and 
make appropriate provision within their individual authorities.
It should also be noted that at the time of the formation of the Joint 
Committee, the Partner Authorities entered into an Inter Authority 
Agreement which sets out the contributions to the running costs of the Joint 
Committee.  
The partner authorities have agreed to the principle that the costs of the 
Joint Committee will be funded firstly to offset the administration costs of the 
Joint Committee by Gloucestershire County Council, as the administrative 
authority.  This sum is capped at £5,000. Thereafter, the Joint Committee 
will determine the allocation of any balance which remains in the Strategic 
Economic Development Fund.

Page 42



Background 
1. The Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP) was set up to maximise the 

business rate income retained within the County and to support economic growth within 
the area of the Local Enterprise Partnership. 

2. In 2013/14, the first year of operation, the Pool reported a surplus of £0.775m of which 
£95k was paid to the Strategic Economic Development Fund supporting the work of the 
Joint Committee. In 2014/15, the pool suffered a significant loss due to the impact of 
backdated appeals on rateable values and in particular, the successful backdated 
appeal by Virgin Media, the largest valued business in Tewkesbury. The final pool 
position for 2014/15 published a deficit of £2.3m following a safety net payment to 
Tewkesbury of £3.9m.

3. The 2015/16 and 2016/17 outturn positions for the Pool reported a surplus of £1.129m 
and £2.138m respectively, and allowed for all pool losses incurred in 2014/15 to be 
repaid.  The cumulative amount of funding generated by the pool for the SEDF since 
2013/14 is £336k.

4. With the ongoing risk associated with the VM issue and following the Committee’s 
agreement, the Pool was dissolved and a new Pool was formed excluding Tewkesbury 
from April 2016 and this arrangement remains in place for 2017/18.

Forecast for the Pool 2017/18
5. As discussed in earlier reports to the committee, the initial forecast for 2017/18 was 

based on the NNDR1 return to Government which sets the level of business rates 
income for each authority for 2017/18, as estimated in January 2017. This estimates 
that an additional £4.023m will be retained in Gloucestershire.  This is due to changes 
in pool levy rate (reducing from 8.47% to 3.43%) as a result of the new valuation list 
and the subsequent revised tariff and top-up figures.

6. The mid-year forecast, based on an estimated outturn position undertaken by pool 
members in September 2017, shows a slightly reduced forecast of £3.821m

7. Whilst the level of additional retained business rates income is encouraging, there 
remains risk to business rates income as April 2017 marked the start of a new valuation 
period.  As members may recall, new rateable values came into force on 01 April 2017, 
with significant changes to individual business rates bills as a result.  The March 2017 
budget made some changes to certain business rates bills that will no doubt impact on 
the final amount of retained business rates income for the year.

8. It is likely that there will be significant appeals against the new valuations and we will 
need to see how these affect the level of retained business rates income over time.

9. Members may be aware that NHS Trusts are continuing to look to be classified as 
charitable bodies and therefore qualify for mandatory charitable business rates relief of 
80% of their business rates. This issue has recently come to the fore again, with 
several local authorities receiving correspondence from agents acting on behalf of NHS 
Trusts.  In the event they are successful with this application, it would have a significant 
impact on the pool in future years.

10.Therefore, the revised estimate of £3.821m highlighted in paragraph 6 should be 
viewed in light of the risks outlined above. An updated forecast will be undertaken in 
January 2018 that will be considered by the Gloucestershire CFOs.

Page 43



100% Business Rates Pilots
11. In September this year, the government published a 100% business rates retention pilot 

prospectus for 2018/19; “Invitation to Local Authorities in England to pilot 100% 
Business Rates Retention in 2018/19 and to pioneer new pooling and tier-split models.”

12.Bids were expected to “include details of how authorities will work together to manage 
risk in line with their proposed pooling arrangements.

13.Under a Business Rates Pilot, member authorities would roll-in existing funding streams 
(Revenue Support Grant, Rural Services Grant, and potentially a variety of other 
funding streams and responsibilities) to allow for a greater proportion of business rates 
to be retained.

14.The Gloucestershire CFOs, with support from Pixel Financial Management, undertook 
extensive financial modelling to assess the risk and reward of a potential bid to be a 
pilot for 2018/19. A report was considered by Leadership Gloucestershire at their 
meeting on 26 October 2017.  This outlined a potential benefit of £10m to the pilot area, 
with a recommended distribution as set out in the table below:

£2M  Strategic Economic Development Fund (available to all councils)
£3M District Councils (for financial resilience or other uses including 

growth initiatives)
£5M County Council (for financial resilience or other uses including 

growth initiatives)

15.Following endorsement by Leadership Gloucestershire, a bid was submitted to CLG on 
27 October. The bid included all Gloucestershire councils, with the bid document 
outlining how the governance arrangements, risk mitigation strategy, and how the 
additional financial benefit would be used to support growth and financial sustainability 
in the pilot area. Final discussions between CLG and local authority groups are 
expected to take place shortly, with CLG set to announce successful pilot areas in the 
Local Government Finance Settlement later in December 2017.

16. In the event that Gloucestershire is not successful with a pilot bid, the current pooling 
arrangements would remain in place (i.e. all Gloucestershire councils with the exception 
of Tewkesbury).

LEP Core Funding position
17.The Government has historically provided LEPs with an element of core funding, which 

needs to be matched by the locality. The maximum amount granted by Government is 
£250k and over the last 4 years the County Council has made the locality contribution 
allowing GFirst LEP to benefit from the full £500k per annum. The funding is confirmed 
on an annual basis by Government. GFirst LEP has secured over £100m of Growth 
Deal Funding during this time, benefitting all District areas.

18.As previously explained, discussions have taken place over the last 12 months and a 
consensus has been reached by senior officers representing the 7 Councils and GFirst 
LEP on how to deal with the locality match funding in the future. 

Page 44



19.The key issues to note:

 There is a need for the locality to continue to match the Government core funding 
and that the funding partners should be diversified;

 At the moment the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of the Business 
Rate Pool provides an effective route for achieving this; 

 The Fund balance currently stands at £333k and £250k of this should be used to 
provide match funding to the Government’s core funding for GFirst LEP in 2018/19; 
the money is held by the County Council;

 All the indications are that the during the current financial year (2017/18) in excess 
of £250k of new revenues will be generated;

 This allows the Committee to take a 2-year view of match funding GFirst LEP but 
will also require it to agree to the first £250k of this years revenues being used to 
provide the match funding for 2019/20;

 The SEDF reserves can be released to the Accountable Body by GCC, subject to a 
positive resolution by the Committee, the Accountable Body will then enter into a 
contract with the LEP to release the funds;

 To mirror Government processes the locality funding should be agreed by the 
Committee annually;

 The exact business rate mechanism for match funding from April 2019 may change 
as work develops around the Business Rate retention pilot;

 There should be a review of the need for on-going Core Funding during 2019 to 
coincide with the end of the Growth Deal period in 2021 and to identify the best 
financial mechanism for enabling the Councils to provide a financial contribution;

 Should the Strategic Economic Fund not have sufficient reserves to fund the 
2019/20 (year 2) commitment, which appears unlikely based on current financial 
monitoring, then the 7 Councils will need to underwrite any shortfall;

 A simple 2-year Memorandum of Understanding will be established between the 7 
Councils and GFirst LEP to confirm partnership expectations and to confirm Council 
representation on the GFirst LEP Board. This should include a requirement for the 
GFirst LEP CEO or senior staff to meet with each Council at least twice per year.

GFirst Inward Investment Service
20.This European funded project would provide GFirst LEP with a dedicated inward 

investment capacity and a real opportunity to provide a step change for 
Gloucestershire.

21. It will be a co-ordinated countywide project driven by GFirst LEP working in partnership 
with the 7 councils.

22.Historically, inward investment activity in the county has been dealt with reactively and 
there is little capacity to handle new enquiries. Good work has been done, with some 
success but with very modest funds. So if successful, the LEP propose to set up a 
small team of Inward Investment Advisers to assist foreign owned businesses looking 

Page 45



to relocate to Gloucestershire as well as helping foreign owned businesses who are 
already based in the county but are looking to expand or relocate. 

23.The project will focus on the LEP’s strategic interests highlighted in our Strategic 
Economic Plan (SEP); high value manufacturing, knowledge intensive and services 
sector. As well as the county’s priority sectors for FDI; advance manufacturing and 
engineering with a bias towards aerospace, energy/renewables and agri-food/agri-
technology. It will also focus on a potential growth sector for the county; Cyber security.

24. In essence the LEP are able to draw down significant funding for inward investment but 
this needs to be matched funded. At the moment around £300k of local funding has 
been identified drawing down £300k of EU funding. The opportunity exists for the 7 
councils to make a financial contribution allowing GFirst LEP to draw down further 
match funding. The proposal is to take £75k from the existing £333k reserves in the 
Strategic Economic Fund, equating to £25k p.a. for 3 years, which will attract a further 
£75k of EU funding.

Risk Assessment
25.Some risk remains from the Business Rates Pool should there be significant backdated 

appeals settled.  The issue of NHS Trusts requesting charitable status is the most 
significant financial risk to the pool and pool members.

Officer Advice
26.No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
27.There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 

financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
28.Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report and 

support the recommendation.

Performance Management/follow-up
29.A report on the performance of the Business Rates Pool will be presented to a future 

meeting of the Joint Committee.  Between now and then, Chief Financial Officers will 
keep Chief Executives and Leaders appraised of any developments 

Page 46



STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE – APPOINTMENT OF A STRATEGIC 
PLANNING COORDINATOR

Meeting GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
(GEGJC)

Report Author Mike Dawson
Chair of GEGJC Senior Officer Group
Tel: 01684 272001
E-mail: mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Background 
documents

 Leadership Gloucestershire Report: Strategic Planning 
Collaboration - 27 July 2017

 GEGJC Report: Strategic Planning Collaboration in 
Gloucestershire – 6 September 2017

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/17753/agenda-270717.pdf

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8456/Public%20re
ports%20pack%20Wednesday%2006-Sep-
2017%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joi
nt%20Committee.pdf?T=10

Main Consultees GEGJC Partners

Planned Dates N/A

Purpose of report To receive detailed proposals for the recruitment of a Strategic 
Planning Coordinator for Gloucestershire (‘the post’).

Recommendations The post will be hosted and supported by Tewkesbury Borough 
Council in accordance with that council’s terms and conditions 
of employment.
1. The appointment will be established in accordance with the 

job description and person specification attached at 
appendix 1, for an initial fixed period of 3 years with a review 
by the GEGJC after 2 years.

2. All cost implications of the post will be financed as follows:
 50% Gloucestershire County Council and
 Remainder shared equally between the District councils 

and the GFirst LEP.
3. For day to day supervision and guidance the post will report 

to the Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group.
4. The post will be located at the GFirst LEP offices.
5. The Joint Committee is asked to make nominations to the 

Appointments Panel as referred to in paragraph 3.2 of this 
report.

6. Authority is delegated to the Chief Executive of Tewkesbury 
Borough Council to appoint the post having considered the 
recommendations of the Appointments Panel.

Page 47

Agenda Item 10

mailto:mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/17753/agenda-270717.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8456/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2006-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8456/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2006-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8456/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2006-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=10
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g8456/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2006-Sep-2017%2010.00%20Gloucestershire%20Economic%20Growth%20Joint%20Committee.pdf?T=10


Reason for 
recommendations

To provide for the successful recruitment of the Strategic Planning 
Coordinator post and progress strategic planning collaboration in 
Gloucestershire. 

Resource 
Implications

Funding arrangements for this post are set out within the report. 

Following job evaluation the maximum cost of the post has increased 
above the initial estimates which indicated that these might not 
exceed £70,000. 

There will be further funding requirements arising from the planning 
collaboration. These will be reported for approval as they arise.
 

1.0 Background

1.1 At its meeting on 6 September this committee resolved: 

1.0 To approve the proposal of Leadership Gloucestershire to create a 
Strategic Planning Coordinator post on the basis of the funding 
arrangements set out in paragraph 2 of the report; and

2.0 That a further report detailing the recruitment arrangements, the terms of 
employment of the post and any changes to the Committee’s governance 
arrangements be provided to the Committee at its meeting on 29 
November 2017 for consideration.

1.2 The Inter-Authority Agreement (between the partner councils which established 
this joint committee) includes a provision for the appointment of a Senior Manager, 
whose recruitment functions would be determined by the GEGJC. The post under 
consideration would be this Senior Manager post.

2.0 Proposed Terms of Employment and Recruitment Arrangements

2.1 Senior Officers from all partner councils and GFirst LEP have agreed to propose 
the following arrangements for the employment and recruitment of the Strategic 
Planning Coordinator:

I. The post will be hosted and supported by Tewkesbury Borough Council in 
accordance with that council’s terms and conditions of employment.

II. The appointment will be for an initial fixed period of 3 years with a review of 
the effectiveness of the arrangements undertaken by the GEGJC after 2 
years.

III. The post will be appointed by and formally report to the GEGJC in 
accordance with the Inter-Authority Agreement. For day to day supervision 
and guidance the post will report to the Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer 
Group, currently Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough 
Council.

IV. The post will be located at the GFirst LEP offices and GFirst LEP will 
provide locational administrative support for the post holder.

Page 48



2.2 A job description and person specification for the post has been prepared and 
these documents are attached at appendix 1 for approval. 

2.3 The post has been independently job evaluated by South West Councils in 
accordance with the LGA senior manager’s job evaluation scheme. The salary has 
been set at Tewkesbury BC’s senior manager grade 7 giving a salary scale 
£51,513 to £56,667. Mileage allowance for the post will be paid at HMRC rates.

2.4 The cost of the post including pension and NI contributions in year 1 - 2018/19 
ranges between £66,508 and £73,274. The actual figure is dependent on the scale 
point to which the post holder is appointed and future local government pay 
increases etc. Mileage and ancillary costs are estimated at a maximum of £3,000.  
Therefore total costs of the post in year 1 should not exceed a maximum of 
£78,000. 

2.5 All costs of the post including support costs, recruitment costs and any future 
redundancy/pension strain payments will be shared between the partner 
authorities and GFirst LEP on the basis of 50 % to Gloucestershire County Council 
and the remaining 50% divided equally between the district councils and GFirst 
LEP. All partners will be invoiced for their apportioned costs by Tewkesbury 
Borough Council as host/employer authority. The costs allocated to partners in 
year 1 will be as follows based on the maximum figure given in paragraph 2.4:

Gloucestershire County Council £39,000
Districts and GFirst LEP £6,500 

2.6 GFirst LEP has indicated that although it supports the funding arrangements, it 
cannot commit to funding for the post beyond one year due to the funding 
uncertainties that organisation currently faces. In the event of GFirst LEP being 
unable to fund its share of the cost of the post, this will need to be met by equal 
share from the district councils.

3.0 Recruitment Arrangements

3.1 It is proposed to advertise the post externally, but the post could be filled by a 
secondment arrangement with one of the partner councils. A secondment 
arrangement will avoid termination costs if the post is terminated after the three 
year period. The advert for the job will make it clear that a secondment 
arrangement will be considered, subject to the support of the employing authority.

3.2 It is proposed that  an appointment panel comprising the Chair and three GEGJC 
members, one of whom should be the Leader of Tewkesbury BC as host/employer 
authority, together with a GFirst LEP representative as an observer . Appropriate 
officers will be in attendance to support the panel.

3.3 Once the funding and appointment arrangements are approved, officers will 
commence the recruitment process and the GEGJC will be informed of the 
appointment on completion.

4.0 Governance Arrangements

4.1 No further governance changes are considered necessary at this time. The post 
holder will be requested to consider the need for further Governance changes and 
bring these to the GEGJC for consideration.

Page 49



5.0 Options

5.1 Different options for the provision and recruitment of this post have been 
considered by members and senior officers throughout the development of the 
proposal. The current proposal is recommended as the most practical and 
effective way forward to establish this shared strategic planning resource.

6.0 Risk Assessment

6.1 There are risks associated with the establishment of this post which concern its 
effectiveness in engendering partnership working in respect of the future strategic 
planning of the county. This will be mitigated through full engagement of the 
partner organisations and the effective oversight of the GEGJC. 

6.2 A disjointed approach to strategic spatial planning cooperation may result in a 
failure to plan effectively for the future of the county and this could threaten future 
growth ambitions. The provision of a shared senior officer resource to lead this 
work on behalf of the GEGJC will assist in the mitigation of these risks.

7.0 Officer Advice

7.1 This is contained in the report. 

8.0 Equalities Considerations

8.1 The post will be recruited in accordance with the Tewkesbury Borough Council’s 
equality policies.

9.0 Consultation Feedback

9.1 None

10.0 Performance management/follow up

10.1 An action plan/objectives in respect of the post will be established together with 
the post holder. Performance management arrangements will be established and 
overseen by the Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group and reported to GEGJC 
in further reports.

Page 50



Appendix 1

JOB DESCRIPTION

1. Group Chief Executive’s Unit

2. Post Title Strategic Planning Coordinator

3. Post Number To be confirmed

4. Post Grade SM7

5. Section Chief Executive

6. Responsible to Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
and Leadership in Gloucestershire

7. Responsible for

8. Main Purpose of Job To provide leadership across all planning and 
infrastructure authorities in Gloucestershire and 
GFirstLEP to co-ordinate work to achieve the following 
aims:

1. To accelerate delivery of housing and 
employment growth.

2. Co-ordinate local plan/core strategy review 
timings to allow more effective cross county 
duty to cooperate discussions and a whole 
county approach to strategic planning 
decisions.

3. Support the development of a single strategic 
planning evidence base for Gloucestershire to 
underpin local plans and relevant strategies.

4. To support the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee in its spatial planning 
role and work to establish broad allocations for 
housing and economic growth across all 
districts.

5. To champion and lead the development of, a 
high level future growth document for 
Gloucestershire, and work with the Local Plan 
teams to translate this into an agreed and 
adopted Gloucestershire Spatial Development 
Strategy.

Page 51



9.0 Specific Duties

9.1 To work under the direction of and to support the work of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) in achieving the acceleration of growth 
and to maintain an approach, which is supportive to, but independent of the partner 
organisations.

9.2 With the support and agreement of partner organisations, to coordinate and direct the 
available strategic and development planning resources, human and financial, to 
achieve the main aims in paragraph 8 above.

9.3 To facilitate common understanding of growth issues with local authorities, the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and other stakeholders and seek alignment of wider 
strategies and programmes to promote growth.

9.4 To provide support for conflict management and disagreement resolution on behalf of 
and with all partners.

9.5 To support the work of the GEGJC and its partners in respect of strategic 
infrastructure provision, including utilisation of funding streams from government and 
development funding.

9.6 To achieve cost reductions through economies of scale from effective partnership 
working in the development of the single strategic planning evidence base.

9.7 To work towards coordinating core strategy/local plan reviews by 2021 using the 
single evidence base.

9.8 To be a “voice” for growth inside and outside Gloucestershire.

9.9 To ensure, together with partners, effective project management of associated growth 
work programmes.

9.10 To maintain effective communications with all partners and stakeholders in respect of 
the work programmes to deliver growth and the general GC role.

9.11 To produce/coordinate production of reports to the GEGJC and partner organisations 
as necessary to facilitate decisions required to achieve the main objectives.

9.12 Work closely with all government agencies as required to support the delivery of 
growth and seek funding opportunities as appropriate.

9.13 Work with partner planning authorities to support planned growth delivery and to 
make development planning processes simple, consistent and developer friendly and 
work with planning authorities outside Gloucestershire where engagement is required 
under duty to co-operate.

9.14 Together with planning authorities, work with developers and builders to encourage 
delivery on all strategic sites.

9.15 Together with all public sector bodies support the delivery of housing on public sector 
sites. 

9.16 Ensuring that services are delivered in compliance with existing and new Health and 
Safety legislation and the Council’s Health and Safety Policy, and ensuring that duties 

Page 52



are pursued in a safe manner with due regard to the Health and Safety of yourself and 
others.

9.17 To adhere to all Council Policy, in particular Equal Opportunities.

9.18 To undertake any other duties properly assigned from time to time by the Director 
which are appropriate to the grade and character of the post.

10.0 Location

10.1 The post holder will be principally based at the LEP, but will work closely with partners 
and so when necessary will work from partner premises

Page 53



PERSON SPECIFICATION

Sets out the qualities which are either essential or desirable for the postholder to enable 
him/her to carry out duties effectively. 

Post Title: Strategic Planning Coordinator Post No: To be confirmed

Service Team: Chief Executive’s Office Grade:   SM7

Essential (E)/Desirable (D)

Qualifications

Educated to degree level or equivalent qualification (E)

RTPI membership (E)

Management qualification (D)

Evidence of continuous professional development (E)

Experience

Suitable planning experience post election to the RTPI (E)
Substantial experience in relation to the spatial planning’s contribution to economic 
development and housing growth (E)

Significant experience of partnership working with internal and external stakeholders, building 
effective relationships with partner organisations, public agencies and the private sector (E)

Significant experience of managing resources including budgets, people and performance (E)
Significant experience of working with community organisations to shape and development 
communities and places (E)

Experience of producing and influencing the development of high quality strategic documents 
and operational plans (E)

Experience of working within successful partnership / collaborative models (E

Significant experience of improving outcomes through work on strategy (E)

Significant leadership experience (D)

Aptitudes/Skills
The ability to express a complex set of national and local political priorities and community 
needs in a coherent and integrated way and to capture this within a high level future growth 
document for Gloucestershire

(E)

Knowledge of project management techniques (E)

IT skills including Microsoft office (E)

Sound judgement (E)
Highly developed communication and interpersonal skills with the ability to liaise, negotiate and 
provide constructive challenge and manage conflict (E)

Be able to analyse and communicate complex information / issues and present information 
effectively and comprehensively both verbally and in written reports (E)

Capable of planning, allocating, monitoring and evaluating work carried out by staff and self (E)

Ability to analyse data and meet deadlines (E)
Continued …..+

Page 54



Aptitudes/Skills continued …..
Developed research and evaluation skills, including the ability to assimilate a coherent 
overview from varying sources of information (E)

The ability to influence direction and development of strategic documents (E)
The ability to operate effectively with people at a range of levels, both internal and external to 
the organisations (E)

Meet management competency framework or demonstrate ability to develop in an acceptable 
time frame (E)

Personal Qualities

Self motivated with the ability to motivate others (E)

Ability to communicate effectively with a variety of people and as part of a team (E)

Customer focus (E)

Visionary and creative approach to work (E)

Politically sensitive, tactful and diplomatic (E)

Calm, helpful, co-operative disposition (E)

Strong interpersonal skills (E)

Flexibility to focus on delivery within a fast moving environment (E)

Demonstrate behaviours consistent with the council’s values (E)
Ability to demonstrate an awareness and understanding of equal opportunities and people’s 
physical, social and welfare needs in the community (E)

Takes personal responsibility and uses resources effectively and efficiently (E)

Open to change and commitment to continuous improvement (E)
Shows respect and consideration (E)

Interests

Built environment (E)

Any Other (not specified above)

Commitment to equal opportunities and health and safety (E)

Full driving licence with the use of motor vehicle (E)

This is a politically restricted post under the terms of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 and Local Government Officers’ (Political Restrictions) Regulations 
1990.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - Forward Plan 2017/18

Meeting Date Subject Focus for Discussion Lead Amendments/Action 
Arising

 6th September
(review)

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (GEGSC)

GFirst LEP Update

Economic Intelligence 
Baseline

Gloucestershire Business 
Rate Pool

Strategic Planning 
Collaboration in 
Gloucestershire

Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure Investment 
Plan (GIIP)

Request that a GEGSC update 
report be included as a standing 
item on this Committee’s agendas.

To receive a report on the delivery 
of the Growth Programme in the 
County, including ESIF update and 
Growth Deal Fund reallocation 
process.

Review of CCN commission: 
Understanding County Economies

Consideration of expenditure 
options for the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund (SEDF)

To receive an update on proposals 
including governance and the 
Strategic Planning Coordinator 
role. 

GIIP update and demonstration of 
mapping tool and launch of access 
pilot

GCC

GFirst LEP

GCC

SDC/GCC

GEGJC Senior Officer 
Group (SOG)

GCC/District 
partners/LEP

Actioned

Standing Item

Actioned

29th September discussion

29th September discussion

Actioned

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 13



Investment Funding 
Opportunities 

Consideration of planned 
submissions to DCLG Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (HIF) and 
Highways England Growth and 
Housing Fund (GHF) calls

GEGJC SOG Actioned

 29th November GFirst LEP Update

Economic Intelligence 
Baseline

Employment and Skills

Gloucestershire 
Connections Study

Gloucestershire Business 
Rates Pool

To receive an update report 
including Growth Deal Fund re-
allocation.

Presentation on INFORM data 
sharing platform and consideration 
of proposals to improve collation 
and utilisation of economic 
intelligence

Update on the activities of the new 
Gloucestershire Employment and 
Skills Board

Presentation on the recently 
commissioned study into the 
future for road and rail in support 
of improved strategic connectivity 
in Gloucestershire by 2050

Consideration of joint Business 
Rates Pool arrangements for 
2018/19 and any associated 
funding proposals

GFirst LEP

GCC

GCC/LEP

GCC

SDC/GCC

Planned

Planned

Planned

Planned

Planned

P
age 58



Strategic Planning 
Collaboration in 
Gloucestershire

Progress report in respect of the 
recruitment for the Strategic 
Planning Coordinator post and 
associated governance changes

GEGJC SOG Planned

 14th March 
2018

Improving the 
Effectiveness of the Local 
Planning System in 
Gloucestershire

Industrial Strategy (IS)

Growth Delivery 
Monitoring, including Core 
Strategy and Local Plan 
Update

GIIP

Review of intervention priorities 
outlined in the Devolution bid and 
as arising from discussions with 
partners, including the 
appointment of a Strategic 
Planning Commissioner

Planned approach for the 
preparation of a local Industrial 
Strategy   

Proposal to regularly review key 
growth elements of strategic and 
local plan delivery and major 
regeneration projects.

End of year update and review of 
outcome of access pilot 

GEGJC SOG

LEP/all partners

GEGJC SOG

GCC/GEGJC SOG

 20th June GFirst LEP Update

GIIP Update

To receive an update report

Update report as required

GFirst LEP

GEGJC SOG

 5th September GFirst LEP Update

GIIP Update

To receive an update report

Update report as required

GFirst LEP

GEGJC SOG

P
age 59



 21st November GFirst LEP Update

GIIP Update

To receive an update report

Update report as required

GFirst LEP

GEGJC SOG

Broadband and mobile 
provision
Visitor Economy

Unscheduled Items

P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee
	6 GFirst LEP Update
	Growth Deal Forward Look Rev11 Nov 2017
	Growth Deal Summary outputs table
	Summary outputs table Re-submissions
	RE-allocation summary timetable Nov2017

	7 Employment and Skills
	9 Business Rate Pool
	10 Strategic Planning Collaboration in Gloucestershire
	13 Forward Plan - Future Work Programme

